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Wendy Collard

From: Jenny Lapham
Sent: Monday, 15 May 2023 04:15 p.m.
To: 'requests@taxpayers.org.nz'
Subject: 20230403 DCC Taxpayers Union  Toit Request
Attachments: LGOIMA Response - Taxpayers Union.pdf; Proposal and Contract for Dunedin City 

Council for CEMARS Certification (2147305) (1).pdf

Kia Ora 
 
Please find our response to your request relating to Toitū.   
 
 
 
Kā mihi 
 
 
Jennifer Lapham 
Mana Whakahaere Kairuruku/Governance Support Officer 
Governance Group            

P  03 477 4000  |   E Jenny.Lapham@dcc.govt.nz  
Te Kaunihera a Rohe o Ōtepoti - Dunedin City Council 
PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054 
New Zealand 
www.dunedin.govt.nz 
 
 



How many years has your council been affiliated with Toitū? 

DCC records show that in 2012, Toitū (then trading as CEMARS) completed an audit of DCC’s 2009/10 
financial year greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory. In 2015, Toitū completed an audit of DCC’s 2013/14 
financial year GHG inventory. 

From 2015 to 2023 DCC has been a member of Toitū’s carbonreduce programme, with Toitū providing 
annual audit/verification and certification of our GHG inventory.  

How much does it cost your council to maintain certification, including fees from Toitū and costs 
related to meeting these requirements? 

The DCC’s membership of Toitū includes annual membership fees as well as annual certification (audit) 
fees and associated disbursements (e.g. flights/accommodation of in person inventory auditor/s). 
Membership and certification/disbursements recorded as paid by the DCC since 2014 are as set out 
below.  

Changes in the trading names used by Toitū, and in lead DCC staff/departments responsible, have 
made it difficult to track contractual records from the original audits. As such, costs incurred by the 
organisation for the original 2012 audit have not been able to be determined. 

Period Membership Audit Costs 

2013-2014  12,000.00 
2014-2015 18,000.00 11,485.39 
2015-2016 15,000.00 9,575.77 
2016-2017 15,000.00 12,234.77 
2017-2018 15,000.00 9,962.35 
2018-2019 15,750.00 9,600.00 
2019-2020 15,750.00 11,990.80 
2020-2021 15,750.00 9,150.00 

2021-2022 15,750.00 
Yet to be 
invoiced 

2022-2023 15,750.00   

 141,750.00 85,999.08 

If different, what were the initial up-front costs to achieve compliance with certification standards 
and achieve certification in the first place? 

Toitū invoices paid by the DCC since 2014 are as set out above. Changes in the trading names used by 
Toitū, and in lead DCC staff/departments responsible, have made it difficult to track contractual 
records from the original audits. As such, a detailed breakdown of the services provided by Toitū in 
the 2012 year is not available.  

Please provide copy of any contracts signed, any other applicable conditions or criteria your council 
must abide by as part of accreditation. 

Changes in the trading names used by Toitū, and in lead DCC staff/departments responsible, have 
made it difficult to track contractual records from the original audits. 



Please find attached the current contract (in place since 2015).  

Please note the contract refers to adherence with the ISO 14064-3:2006 standard, however current 
certification is assessed against the updated ISO 14064-1:2018 standard. Application of ISO 14064: 
2018 to internal emissions measurement and reporting by is specified in the DCC’s Zero Carbon Policy, 
so this change would have occurred irrespective on Toitū membership. 

In brief, the main difference between the 2006 and 2018 ISO 14064 standard is that the 2018 standard 
requires a broader range of indirect emissions sources to be included in an organisations’ GHG 
inventory than the 2006 standard. A few examples of the new emissions sources include emissions 
associated with the manufacture of products purchased by an organisation, emissions from services 
procured (e.g. services like rubbish and recycling collection) and emissions associated with staff travel 
to and from work. 

Does the council plan to achieve Carbon Positive certification, and if so, why, and under what 
timeframe? If not, why?  

DCC adopted a Zero Carbon Policy in 2022. The policy states that the DCC will seek to achieve or exceed 
adopted city-wide emissions reduction targets and DCC organisational targets, and that in pursuit of 
targets, the DCC will prioritise gross emissions reduction.  

Dunedin’s emissions reduction target is in two parts (a ‘split gases approach’), as follows:  

- Net zero emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases by 2030 (except biogenic 
methane) 

- 24-47% reduction in biogenic methane emissions below 2017 levels by 2050, including a 10% 
reduction below 2017 levels by 2030. 

The DCC’s current organisation emissions reduction target (Scope 1&2) is a 42% reduction in emissions 
by 2029/30 on a 2019/20 baseline. 

The DCC has no current plans to achieve carbon positive certification as an organisation.  
 
The Zero Carbon Policy can be found here - https://www.dunedin.govt.nz/council/policies,-plans-and-
strategies/policies/zero-carbon-policy  
 
And more information on the Zero Carbon work programme can be found here - 
https://www.dunedin.govt.nz/dunedin-city/climate-change/zero-carbon  

Has the council considered other certification/auditors, or in-house auditing of their climate 
emissions as an alternative to Toit? 

The DCC continually reviews whether existing arrangements, such as our membership in the Toitū 
carbonreduce programme, remain fit for purpose and provide value for money. The DCC 10 Year Plan 
2021-31 provided for significant improvements in DCC internal emissions management capacity and 
capability. In that context, the DCC’s need for general support provided by Toitū membership has been 
superceded by internal capability, and the DCC’s 2021/22 emissions inventory will be the final DCC 
inventory audited and verified under the 2015 contract with Toitū carbonreduce. 
 
The DCC will continue to procure third party audit and verification of annual emissions inventories, 
to provide third party assurance that our inventory is robust and up-to-date with current best 



practice. The DCC will shortly be going to market for audit/verification services for its 2022/23 
emissions inventory. 
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Wendy Collard

From: Customer Services
Sent: Monday, 3 April 2023 12:49 p.m.
To: Official Information
Subject: FW: 20230403 DCC Taxpayer's Union Toitū LGOIMA Request [#110A5DC]

Kia ora, 
 
This was received via email. Please let us know if there is anything further we can help with. 
Nga mihi 
 
Sheryl  
Customer Services Officer 
Customer Services  
P 03 477 4000 | E dcc@dcc.govt.nz  
Dunedin City Council, 50 The Octagon, Dunedin 
PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054 
New Zealand 
www.dunedin.govt.nz 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: requests@taxpayers.org.nz 
Sent: Monday, 3 April 2023 10:38:31 a.m. 
To: dcc@dcc.govt.nz 
Subject: 20230403 DCC Taxpayer's Union Toit LGOIMA Request 
To the Dunedin City Council, 
This is a request for official information under the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 
relating to the environmental certification your council has received. 
We request information that answers the following questions: 

1. How many years has your council been affiliated with Toit? 
2. How much does it cost your council to maintain certification, including fees from Toit and costs related to 

meeting these requirements? 
1. If different, what were the initial up-front costs to achieve compliance with certification standards 

and achieve certification in the first place? 
3. Does the council plan to achieve Carbon Positive certification, and if so, why, and under what timeframe? 

1.  
1. If not, why? 

1. Has the council considered other certification/auditors, or in-house auditing of their climate emissions as an 
alternative to Toit? 

We do not wish to cause unnecessary expense or burden on your council. If clarification of any of our requests is 
needed, please call or email. Likewise, if a request proves unnecessarily burdensome in form and we are likely to be 
able to adjust it to be more specific or better suited to your information systems without losing the benefit of what 
is sought, please also get in touch. If there is likely to be a delay in being able to assemble or provide some of the 
information requested, please provided the rest of the information as it becomes available. 
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To avoid unnecessarily printing and postage costs, we ask that you send a confirmation of receipt, the response and 
any other correspondence to requests@taxpayers.org.nz. Please include the following reference in the subject line – 
20230403 DCC Taxpayers Union Toit Request 
Regards, 

 
Research Intern | New Zealand Taxpayers’ Union | Auckland Ratepayer’s Alliance 

 
New Zealand Taxpayers’ Union Inc. | Main +64 4 282 0300 | 117 Lambton Quay, Wellington 6011 | PO Box 
10518, The Terrace, Wellington 6143 | www.taxpayers.org.nz 
Auckland Ratepayers’ Alliance | Main +64 9 281 5172 | 41 Shortland Street, Auckland 1010 | PO Box 
133099, Eastridge, Auckland 1146 | www.ratepayers.nz 
We are 100% funded by people like you. If you like what we do, join the Taxpayers’ Union or the 
Ratepayers’ Alliance. 




